

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals  
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

**LAWS**  
**OF THE**  
**STATE OF MAINE**

**AS PASSED BY THE**  
**ONE HUNDRED AND SEVENTEENTH LEGISLATURE**

**FIRST REGULAR SESSION**  
**December 7, 1994 to June 30, 1995**

**THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR**  
**FIRST REGULAR SESSION**  
**NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS**  
**SEPTEMBER 29, 1995**

**PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES**  
**IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,**  
**TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4**

---

---

**J.S. McCarthy Company**  
**Augusta, Maine**  
**1995**

## CHAPTER 91

## H.P. 419 - L.D. 576

**An Act to Facilitate the Use of the  
Installment Method for the  
Collection of Sewer Assessments and  
Charges**

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of  
Maine as follows:**

**Sec. 1. 30-A MRSA §3444, sub-§1**, as amended by PL 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8 and 10, is further amended to read:

**1. Payment over time.** ~~The legislative body~~ municipal officers of a municipality may ~~enact an ordinance~~ adopt an order generally authorizing the assessors and the tax collector to assess and collect those assessments and charges over a period of time not exceeding 10 years, including expenses involved in the municipality's abatement of malfunctioning domestic waste water disposal units under section 3428, subsection 4.

A. The assessors and collector may exercise this authority only when the person assessed has agreed to that method of assessment and collection in writing and notice of that fact has been recorded in the appropriate registry of deeds.

B. The municipal officers shall annually file with the collector a list of installment payments due the municipality, which ~~shall~~ must be collected with interest at a rate determined by the municipal officers. If, within 30 days after written notice of the total amount of the assessments and charges, or annual installment payment and interest, the person assessed fails, neglects or refuses to pay the municipality the expense incurred, the municipal assessors may assess a special tax, equal to the amount of the total unpaid assessment and charges, upon each lot or parcel of land so assessed and buildings upon the lot or parcel of land. This assessment ~~shall~~ must be included in the next annual warrant to the tax collector for collection and ~~shall~~ must be collected in the same manner as state, county and municipal taxes are collected.

(1) Interest at the ~~rate of 12% per year~~ same rate used for delinquent property taxes as established by Title 36, section 505, subsection 4 on the unpaid portion of assessments and charges due the municipality ~~shall accrue~~ accrues from the 30th day after written notice to the person assessed and ~~shall~~ must be added to and ~~become~~ be-

comes part of the special tax when committed to the tax collector.

See title page for effective date.

## CHAPTER 92

## H.P. 452 - L.D. 618

**An Act to Change the Definitions of  
"River," "Stream" and "Brook" in  
the Environmental Laws**

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of  
Maine as follows:**

**Sec. 1. 38 MRSA §436-A, sub-§11-A**, as amended by PL 1991, c. 346, §3, is further amended to read:

**11-A. Stream.** "Stream" means a free-flowing body of water from the outlet of a great pond or the point of confluence of 2 perennial streams as depicted by a solid blue line on the most recent edition of a United States Geological Survey 7.5-minute series topographic map; or, if not available, a 15-minute series topographic map, to the point where the body of water becomes a river or flows to another water body or wetland within a shoreland area.

**Sec. 2. 38 MRSA §480-B, sub-§9**, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 809, §2, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

**9. River, stream or brook.** "River, stream or brook" means a channel between defined banks and associated flood plain wetlands. A channel is created by the action of surface water and has 2 or more of the following characteristics.

A. It is depicted as a solid or broken blue line on the most recent edition of the U.S. Geological Survey 7.5-minute series topographic map or, if that is not available, a 15-minute series topographic map.

B. It contains or is known to contain flowing water continuously for a period of at least 3 months of the year in most years.

C. The channel bed is primarily composed of mineral material such as sand and gravel, parent material or bedrock that has been deposited or scoured by water.

D. The channel contains aquatic animals such as fish, aquatic insects or mollusks in the water or, if no surface water is present, within the stream bed.